Responses to Questions

RFQ for Qualified Contractor Pool Round 2

Questions and Answers for Round 2

Request for Qualifications for General Contractors.
	EVENT
	DATE/TIME

	Posting of Request for Qualifications Second Pool
	July 17, 2013

	Mandatory Conferences for Round 2 (must attend one)

Cape May (Flanders Hotel, 719 East 11th Street, Ocean City New Jersey 08226)

Ocean County  (Toms River Holiday Inn, 631 Clifton Avenue, Toms River, New Jersey 08753)
Union City, Monmouth County (650 Toole Avenue Municipal Building, Union Beach, New Jersey 07735)
Bergen County  (Renaissance Meadowlands, 801 Rutherford Avenue, Rutherford, New Jersey 07070)
	July 18, 2013/10:00 a.m.

July 18, 2013/3:00 p.m. 
July 19, 2013/9:00
July 19, 2013/2:00 p.m.

	Deadline for written questions for Second Qualified Contractor Pool
	July 22, 2013 3:00 p.m.

Answered July 24, 2013

	Deadline for submission of Request for Qualifications to be considered in Second Pool
	July 31, 2013/
3:00 p.m. (EDT)

	Evaluation Period/Second Qualified Contractor Pool Announced
	July 31, 2013, through 

August 9, 2013

	Third Deadline for Request for Qualifications for Third Pool of Qualified Contractors
	August 19, 2013

	Final Planned Deadline for Request for Qualifications for Fourth Pool of Qualified Contractors
	September 17, 2013

	


Attached is a summary of all questions received by the RREM Program Managers from the Public Meetings and at the email listed in the Request for Qualifications.  The questions and answers are in no particular order so Responders should read all 86 questions and answers.
1. Who is responsible for homeowner dissatisfaction?

The RREM Program Managers will work with the Homeowner and the Contractor to resolve any issues.
2. Two contractors were told that as long as you’re a licensed NJ contractor and you already have work with a homeowner, then you can continue your work under RREM.

The policy on this is not fully developed but will not impact qualifications for submission of the RFQ.  The Program will have developed policies on this matter prior to the first awards being made.
3. Are there additional recovery programs in addition to RREM? 

Yes.  There are additional programs as called for in the State of New Jersey Action Plan.  Information about those programs is available at www.reNewJerseyStronger.org 
4. SSHIP told a homeowner they can pair with a preferred general contractor.  Is that possible?

Not at this time.  The program is to assign builders who have been accepted in the Qualified Contractor Pool to Homeowners. The issue is under review.
5. When will draws be paid?
Draws will be paid at pre-determined 33%, 66% and Final completion stages for reconstruction.  For rehabilitation projects or modular, the General Contractors may submit draws at the 50% and Final stages.  Once there is an approved invoice the funds will be paid within 30 days.
6. How long will it take for draws to be approved?

For draws that are properly submitted the approval process should be less than two weeks, with payment following within 30 days.
7. Will bond certificates be addressed to a specific home?

Each home will require a performance and payment bond in the amount of the general contractor’s work order amount for the project.
8. What do you need for the RFQ if you aren’t already bonded?

With your submission for the RFQ you will need a letter from a bonding company that demonstrates that the responder has the ability to obtain $1,000,000 in bonding capacity.
9. Is there a cap on the size of the contractor pool?

There is no cap on the total number of General Contractors.  All Responders that qualify will be placed in the pool.
10. What if home construction goes over 90 days? What if the delays are out of contractor’s control (e.g., a result of an absent inspector)?

Delays outside of the General Contractor’s control should be discussed and documented immediately with the RREM Program Manager at the time of the delay.  Reported delays that are documented and agreed by RREM to be outside of the General Contractor’s control will  not count against the 90 day window.
11. Will there be more reconstruction or rehabilitation under RREM?
We do not know. Historically in storm recovery programs, more reconstructions have been completed, but until the entire applicant pool is known, we will not know.

12. Who pulls necessary permits for construction?

Zoning and environmental permits will be the responsibility of the RREM Program Managers.  All work products will then be provided to the General Contractor who will be responsible for acquiring all building permits from the respective municipal authority with jurisdiction over the project.
13. What if permitting takes longer than expected? Can a contractor take on another job?

A contractor may not exceed the total amount of their identified financial and bonding capacity at any point.
14. Do you accept NPOs into the pool? Is volunteer labor allowed?

Non-profits are accepted into the pool.  If a non-profit bids, disclose the parameters using volunteer labor into your price component. 
15. Do contractors need to list their subcontractors on the RFQ?

Only Subcontractors that are considered direct part of the General Contractor team (15% or more) should be listed.  Additionally, identification of subcontractors that will perform Lead Based Paint (LBP) work along with the subcontractor’s certifications should be provided if the work is not performed by the GC.
16. Do state and federal sales taxes apply? 

Yes.  This is a private contract.
17. Do warranty costs go into the RFQ pricing exercise?
Yes
18. How is the payment schedule affected if a home is built in fewer than 90 days?

The progress schedules estimated at 30, 60 and 90 days are maximums.  The inspections and draws are related to the completion of building elements, not time.  The time limits are to provide contractors target times to make progress, not payment restrictions.

19. Are the three RREM program managers (URS, CBI-Shaw, Gilbane) broken up by county?

No.
20. Is the applicant demographic data available?

No.
21. May the approved designs be applied to modular?

Yes.

22. May a homeowner use funds towards design plans they’ve already made?

That is not how the program is designed.  A homeowner agrees to the Scope of Work for Rehab or the standard state-approved prototype plans for Reconstruction.

23. Is the expectation that some home models will be built for $150,000?

Homes will be available in this range.
24. What is the maximum square footage of the pre-approved home designs?
The floor plans are still under design but likely will not exceed 2,800 square feet.
25. May homeowners receiving rehabilitation projects include additions?

No.
26. Will there be an opportunity for contractors to be interviewed after submission of RFQ application?

The RFQ allows for this option.  If it is needed, the Responder will be contacted.

27. Will rehabilitation projects be a composite price or put up for bid?
Currently the Rehabilitation projects will be up for bid to three pre-qualified General Contractors for each project.  As the program moves forward, the program will be analyzed to create additional efficiencies that allow for cost reasonableness.

28. Will elevation projects be a composite price or put up for bid?

Elevations are considered a form of Rehabilitation and will be bid.
29. May contractors end up working with all three RREM PMs?
It is expected that General Contractors in the Pool will work with all three RREM Program Managers.

30. How important are details in the pricing exercise?
The pricing component of the RFQ is designed to demonstrate the ability of the Respondent to develop a bid and understand the requirements of home building or rehabilitation.  The pricing component is worth 20% of the overall scoring in Section V.
31. If a homeowner’s been approved for an SBA loan, can he/she receive funds in this program?
This is a Duplication of Benefits question and is not part of the construction process.  It is more appropriately answered by the SSHIP intake counselor.

32. How does a contractor substantiate Section 3 compliance?
Prior to receiving an assignment, all RREM Program Managers will work with a General Contractor to help explain the requirements of Section 3.  At a minimum under the DCA policy, there will need to be a baseline of staff at the time of selection.  Reports will be filed where the GC reports its hiring and construction percentages.  The forms will be similar to the Section 3 Forms for Individuals and Businesses locate on the HUD Website.  Final forms will be distributed to those in the Qualified Contractor Pool.

33. Would more references help an RFQ application score higher?
No. Maximum points are provided for three references related to substantially similar work.
34. When does the 90 clock start for a contractor?
The 90 day clock starts when the Notice to Proceed has been issued in writing to the General Contractor.  The NTP is issued after the homeowner has vacated the home, after the Building Permit has been pulled by the General Contractor, and after the project bonding and insurance documents have been provided and accepted by the RREM Program Managers.
35. Are the permit-pulling costs included in payment to contractor?

Yes. Building Permits and associated fees are an eligible cost.
36. How will costs of permitting come into play during submittal of rehabilitation bids?

Bids that are submitted by the General Contractor shall include all permits and fees required to execute the scope of work contained in the construction documents.
37. Where will the funds be kept during construction of the home?

Federal funds will be requested from the government when a draw request has been approved.  Where there are Homeowner funds involved, those will be held in Escrow and paid upon completion of the work.
38. Would a contractor have the opportunity to decline a homebuilding assignment?

Yes.  There is no guarantee that a replacement project will be provided at the time the general contractor declines the assigned or awarded project.   
39. What happens when a contractor reaches its bonding capacity during work?

The estimated contract value of a project cost versus bonding capacity will be considered prior to work being assigned or awarded. All contracts will require bonding.
40. If a homeowner had a single-floor home before, would they be constrained to a single-floor design?
The Reconstruction homes will be based on bedrooms of the storm damaged home, not levels or size of the home, but also must consider the buildable area available on the lot and cost reasonableness.
41. How will designs & composite pricing be adjusted for homeowners with disabilities?
The Program will review on a case-by-case basis special needs of the Homeowner and adjustments will be made accordingly.

42. May a homeowner hire an architect and design his/her own home and still receive funds from this program?
No.

43. Does the experience requirement in the RFQ apply to a company, specific employee, or both?
The experience factor can be for a company, a strategic alliance of companies or for key “decision making” employees.  Experience may be combined. A least 100 houses must be demonstrated for full points.
44. Is there a wage regulatory guideline as a part of this program?

It is anticipated that market wages will be paid. However the contract is between the Homeowner and the General Contractor and therefore state and federal prevailing wage laws are not applicable.
45. Is there a home schedule on the rehabilitation pricing sheet?

No.  The Contract will require completion within the 90 days.
46. Is Section 3 eligibility specific to each county?
Yes.

47. Are reconstruction projects immediately apart of the DCA warranty insurance program?
Yes the cost for either the state insurance or approved third party insurance must be included in the bid.  Insurance costs will be included in the composite price during the construction phase of the project.
48. How do elevation-only contractors fit in to this program?
At this point, because of the substantial damage requirement, the elevation only contractors will not be General Contractors unless they chose to do additional work (like Rehabs). General Contractors will need to work with elevation companies if a home needs to be raised above the BFE requirements.  Elevation only may be a program in future rounds. There is another program (HMGP) that was announced not related to the CDBG Program that elevation contractors may want to look at as it is elevation only.
49. Where does the 90-day construction timeline come from?

The 90 day timeline is based on experience with similar programs operated in other states that have had such programs.  It is designed to provide a quick, but reasonable timeline, to get the owner back into their home as quickly as possible.
50. Is builder’s risk covered by the program funds or contractor?

Builders’ Risk insurance will be provided by the Contractor.
51. Are special insurance requirements for elevation included in the elevation pricing exercise?

Each General Contractor is required to carry the required amounts of coverage at all times during participation in the program. The program will allow for reasonable costs for all required insurance needed by the General Contractor, including specialized insurance.

52. What is the difference between a reconstruction and rehabilitation project?

In most cases, reconstruction would be considered new home construction on the same lot as the original primary dwelling.  The home will be demolished and rebuilt in a similar footprint.  Rehabilitation will include making necessary repairs (including elevation if required) to an existing home.
53. Who are draw requests submitted to? Who issues payments?
Draw Requests will be submitted to the assigning RREM Program manager and payments will be made from the Escrow agent.

54. What is the difference, if any, between the Round 1 and Round 2 RFQs?

They are substantially the same but there are several differences.  Primarily in the form of changes to the scoring, clarifications made to submission requirements that were missing in Round 1 Responses, no plans to be submitted, clarification of the qualifications for modular only builders and not-for-profit builders.  Round 2 contains a Rehabilitation bid package (Exhibit J) not found in Round 1.  In addition, Round 2 does not allow for electronic submissions.
55. What is the maximum number of bedrooms available?
Four bedrooms for Reconstruction project.  There is no limit for bedrooms on Rehabilitation, but homeowners may not add additional bedrooms to their current existing home. 
56. How will reconstruction assignments be made to the pool of contractors?
Assignments will be made on a based a review of ability to perform, capacity and meeting program requirements.  The RREM Program Managers will work together to make assignments based on the selection of the General Contractors in their submissions (type and location of work) and the capacity of each builder based on bonding and financial resources, meeting program building schedules, performance, customer service, etc.

57. How specific will the home plans be when they reach the contractor? To the specific manufacturer level?
Yes. Professionally sealed construction documents will be provided if we are discussing floor plans.  If you are talking about appliances or other materials, there will be minimum standards, but specific manufacturers will not be included. This will be determined on a project-by-project basis between the Homeowner and the RREM Program Manager.
58. How will prequalified contractors know when a rehabilitation bid is available?

They will be notified by a RREM Program Manager that they have been selected for the opportunity to bid.
59. What is the timeline leading up to the contractor’s Notice to Proceed?

A Homeowner must meet the eligibility requirements.  The eligible homeowner will be sent to a RREM Program Manager who will send an assessment team out in the field to develop a scope of work and/or an Estimated Cost of Repair (ECR).  This will trigger an environmental review that will identify any necessary mitigation.  The homeowner will be advised and make style selections.  Any engineering or planning and zoning requirements will be addressed. An assignment/award will be made to the general contractor. After the applicant has moved out of the home and the utilities have been disconnected, a Notice to Proceed will be issued.
60. It was mentioned at today's meeting that there are approximately 26 house plans that will be offered to homeowners that are rebuilding. Where may we find those plans for review?

The plans are not yet available for review.
61. Are Qualified General Contractors required to use subcontractors from any particular list or are they permitted to use the Homeowner’s selected (sub) contractor provided they meet the General Contractor’s standards?
The General Contractor may use any subcontractor not on the Federal or State Debarment. There is no “pool” of approved subcontractors.
62.  If one is not an “Elevation” Contractor, but provides block/foundation work for house elevations, can they submit a proposal? (This is asked in light of Question and Answer #19 which states that Qualified Elevation Contractors would be a “resource” for General Contractors; likewise, could a list be created where “Elevation Subcontractors” would be a resource for Qualified Elevation Contractors?)
The General Contractor may use any subcontractor not on the Federal or State Debarment. There is no “pool” of approved subcontractors.
63.  While recognizing that this RFQ is for General Contractors, is there a program to create a list of “qualified” subcontractors to be used by the General Contractor?
The General Contractor may use any subcontractor not on the Federal or State Debarment. There is no “pool” of approved subcontractors.
64. If one is not a “General “ Contractor, but is interested in providing services in one specialized area like insulation or sheetrock, can they submit a proposal for just that work?
No this pool is only for General Contractors.
65. Is it required to have a current registration on the date the application is submitted or is it permitted to be registered at the time of award?

All required registration in the State of New Jersey must be obtained by the General Contractor Respondent prior to an assignment being made.
66. Can Qualified General Contractors use the Homeowner's choice of subcontractor if they are not considered a "major" subcontractor (i.e., performing less than 15% of the project)?

The General Contractor may use any subcontractor not on the Federal or State Debarment. There is no “pool” of approved subcontractors.
67. Specifically in relation to the Mechanical systems - HVAC system and Domestic Hot water, ARE there any options that the homeowner can choose for example:

a. Do they have to use a Warm Air System or do they have a choice, and use a hydronic heating system such as a boiler and indirect fired hot water heater.

There may be some “upgrades” available to Homeowners who wish to provide additional personal funds to be placed in escrow to pay for such upgrades.  Currently mechanical system upgrades are under review.
68. I’m working on my estimates for the shore model home and i have a few questions. The plan attached to the file seems to be from a different part of the country. It cannot be built in this area for many reasons. Ie: snow loads, lot sizes, footing depth/coverages, etc. It also does not show pilings   Are we just going through this as an exercise?  What is the purpose of these numbers?  
As was stated in the mandatory pre-submission conferences, this home will not be built in New Jersey.  It is a component of the RFQ to ensure that General Contractors are able to perform a bidding exercise.  The purpose is to help establish some independent cost verifications prior to the actual homes to be built being distributed for the composite bid price.  The bidding exercise does count for 20% of the total available points.  

69. Once we are approved, what is the award process? Do we bid on each house etc.?
Reconstruction projects will be assigned on a based a review of ability to perform, capacity and meeting program requirements basis.  Rehabilitations are expected, at least initially, to be bid based on a RREM Program Manager’s designed Scope of Work.
70. The question I have is about the year's in business you need. My partner has been in business for 14 years as J and J fine custom homes. Can we use that for the years in business?
As long as your partner (or others in home building management or construction management) is in a decision making role and has responsibility for the homes to be rehabilitated or reconstructed, yes.
71. What are the programs total dollars and time frame?

The New Jersey Action Plan allocates $600,000,000 to the RREM Program.  The enabling legislation and HUD announcement provide a two year window for completion and extensions may only be granted by submitting a request to the HUD Secretary.

72. Article IV:  Cost Proposal , Paragraph 5 and 6, Page 22-The solicitation states that if submitting only Modular or Manufactured cost proposals will limit you to those scopes of qualifications only, If you respond to Exhibit I and Exhibit J does that include you in the modular and manufactured qualified pool or should cost proposals be submitted for to have modular and manufactured homes included?

You must demonstrate a desire to be in the Modular pool.  If you only desire to be in a modular pool, then you must price a modular home similar in size to the home in Exhibit I.  Otherwise, pricing Exhibit I is sufficient.

73. Can we please get a copy of the sign-in sheet from the Ocean County Meeting that took place on July 18, 2013?

It will be posted on the DCA Website.

74. I understand that all the building permits will be pulled prior to builders receiving plans.  Will this included utility application for hook up as well (electric & gas) or will the builder have to apply for these services?
The General Contractor will be responsible for the Building Permits and for arranging the disconnection of utilities.
75. Is there a maximum amount of time builders will have to wait to be reimbursed?  If I understand the draw schedule correctly the last inspection will be at the end of the 90 days (or sooner depending on when the homes is complete).  If the last draw is submitted for approval (at 90 days) it will take two weeks to process and a check should be issued within 30 days.  Is it practical to assume that final payment will be received no later than 134 weeks after the start of each job?
This depends on the progress made on a particular home and the timing of submitting draws ready to be approved.  The key factor is the time it takes to submit a draw for approval and the completeness of the submission.

76. .  For the Worker's Comp. Insurance the state plan only guarantees up to a half million coverage.  It is up to individual insurance companies to extend that to a million as required.  What if an insurance company refuses to raise coverage up to a million?
The program will accept the statutory amount the state requires.  If its $500K, then that is the minimum requirement.  If a contractor wants more, he can buy up to whatever he wants.
77. Builders applying for new construction and not renovation bid out Exhibit I on Exhibit E.  Is this correct?
Respondents who wish to be approved for new Construction prepare their bid on Exhibit E (xls spreadsheet titled Form 11.17 based on the floor plans in Exhibit I.  Persons wishing to do Rehab only, will bid on the sheet found in Exhibit J.

78. If a homeowner did not accept an SBA loan and had applied and qualified for the grant are they still eligible for grant money?  It was stated on the HUD website that the ruling for automatic ineligibility for the grant money was overturned if the SBA loan was not accepted.
This is a Duplication of Benefits question and is not part of the construction process.  It is more appropriately answered by the SSHIP intake counselor.

79. Can the homeowner refuse the builder that is awarded the bid? 
Potentially, but this will be determined on a case-by-case basis reviewed by the RREM Program Manager.

80. We wanted to know if this program was set up for the contractors to front upfront monies to complete projects or get to the next milestones?? Would contractor receive payments to start projects??
This is a reimbursement program.  There are no “up front” payments or down payments to begin the work.

81. I would like to know how we can become an RREM approved contractor.

A General Contractor must submit a full and satisfactory response to the Request for Qualifications on or before July 31, 2013 (or a subsequent RFQ released August 19, 2013 or September 17, 2013) and score at least 65%, meet other RFQ minimum requirements and not be debarred by the State of New Jersey or Federal government.

82. Do you or the homeowner select the contractor for work financed wholly or partially by your grants?

The current plan is for the RREM Program Manager to select the General Contractor from the Pool.
83. Are there any earnings limitations/restrictions on those applying for the RREM grants?

The New Jersey Action Plan states that benefits are to households with adjusted gross income of $250,000 or less.  The Action Plan also requires a split in applicants of 70% being Low to Moderate Income with the remaining 30% being between 80% of Area Median Family Income and $250, 000.
84. What is the timing on obtaining a grant? When will the funds be available?
The timing is based on the speed at which a Homeowner moves through the eligibility process and the work to be done to the home is established.  This can be relatively quick, or take longer if records are being recreated by the Homeowner.
85. If a homeowner obtains sufficient money from the insurance company to renovate their home can they still apply for RREM grants.
This is a Duplication of Benefits question and is not part of the construction process.  It is more appropriately answered by the SSHIP intake counselor.

86. Can RREM grants be used for the purpose of lifting the house to meet FEMA standards?
Yes, currently as part of a reconstruction or rehabilitation program the homes may be lifted ABFEs (plus one additional foot, as has been required by the New Jersey Flood Hazard

Area Control Act.
